## HUDSON, NH BOARD OF SELECTMEN

## Minutes of the July 25, 2023 Meeting

1. <u>CALL TO ORDER</u> - by Chairman McGrath the meeting of July 25, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. in the Selectmen Meeting Room at Town Hall.

## 2. <u>PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE</u> led by Selectman Guessferd

Chairman McGrath then addressed the room saying, I'm going to ask everyone to stand again, please, for a moment of silence in honor of former Hudson resident and volunteer Alton Hopkins Jr. who recently passed away. Thank you very much.

## 3. <u>ATTENDANCE</u>

Board of Selectmen: Dillon Dumont, Bob Guessferd, Marilyn McGrath, Dave Morin

Selectman Roy joined the meeting remotely from her residence.

<u>Staff/Others</u>: Brian Groth, Town Planner; Tad Dionne, Police Chief; Steve McElhinney, Police Captain; Jim McIntosh, Dir. of Community Media; Craig Putnam, Electric Aggregation Committee; Gary Gasdia, School Board Chairman; Jill Laffin, Executive Assistant

Town Administrator Steve Malizia had an excused absence this evening.

- 4. PUBLIC INPUT There was no public input this evening.
- 5. RECOGNITIONS, NOMINATIONS & APPOINTMENTS none
- 6. <u>CONSENT ITEMS</u>

Chairman McGrath asked, does anyone have anything they'd like removed for separate consideration? <u>Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to approve</u> <u>Consent Items A, B, C, D, E, & F. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0</u>.

- A. <u>Assessing Items</u> none
- B. <u>Water/Sewer Items</u> none
- C. <u>Licenses & Permits & Policies</u> 1) Outdoor Gathering Permit - Hudson Old Home Days
- D. <u>Donations</u> none
- E. <u>Acceptance of Minutes</u> 1) Minutes of July 11, 2023
- F. <u>Calendar</u>

07/26	7:00	Planning Board	Buxton Meeting Room
07/27	7:00	Building Board of Appeals	BOS Meeting Room
07/27	7:00	Zoning Board of Adjustment	Buxton Meeting Room

08/01	7:00	Board of Selectmen Workshop
08/02	8:30	Highway Safety Committee
08/02	7:00	Budget Committee
08/08	7:00	Board of Selectmen

BOS Meeting Room BOS Meeting Room Buxton Meeting Room BOS Meeting Room

## 7. OLD BUSINESS

- A. Votes taken after Nonpublic Session on July 11, 2023
- 1. Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to terminate Lieutenant Michael Mallen effective July 15, 2023, as recommended by the Fire Chief. Carried 4-0.
- Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to amend the motion made on May 9, 2023, to hire Steven Lubinger for the position of Firefighter/EMT in the Fire Department at the contracted rate of \$17.78 per hour (step 1), and change it to a contracted salary rate of \$22.43 per hour (step 3), as recommended by the Fire Chief. Carried 4-0.
- 3. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to hire Robert Soares for the position of Dispatcher in the Fire Department at the contracted salary of \$19.36 per hour (step 1). This assignment will be a non-exempt position in accordance with the International Association of Firefighters Local #3154, as recommended by the Fire Chief. Carried 4-0.
- 4. Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to hire Cole Lodi, James Sheldon, Gavyn Torres for the position of Firefighter/EMT in the Fire Department at the contacted salary of \$18.14 per hour (step 1). This assignment will be a non-exempt position in accordance with the International Association of Firefighters Local #3154, as recommended by the Fire Chief. Carried 4-0.
- 5. Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to hire Joseph Walker for the position of Firefighter/EMT in the Fire Department at the contracted salary of \$22.43 per hour (step 3). This assignment will be a non-exempt position in accordance with the International Association of Firefighters Local #3154, as recommended by the Fire Chief. Carried 4-0.
- 7. Selectman Guessferd made a motion to adjourn at 9:56pm. This was seconded by Selectman Morin. Carried 4-0.

Chairman McGrath spoke up after the votes were read to say, can I make a slight adjustment to item number four? It refers to the very last line Association of Firefighters Local 3254 and all of the other ones are listed as 3154 so. To which Ms. Laffin replied, it should be 3154. I'll make the correction. Selectman Guessferd then said, I think you read it correctly. Ms. Laffin replied, I did. I caught it as I was reading it. I'll correct it.

B. Town-wide Traffic Study Results - Nashua Regional Planning Commission

Chairman McGrath recognized Caleb Cheng & Ned Connell of Nashua Regional Planning Commission. Also present in the room was Nashua Regional Planning Commission Executive Director, Jay Minkarah. Mr. Connell began by saying, my name is Ned Connell. This is Caleb. Chairman McGrath interjected saying, Caleb and I have met before. Go ahead. Mr. Connell continued saying, I'm brand new at the Commission. I started there at the end of May, and I'm now just a senior planner. And eventually, probably by the end of the year, I'll be the Principal Transportation Planner. Jay, the Executive Director, sent me over to take care of this tonight. Chairman McGrath then said you jumped right into a big project. To which Mr. Connell replied, well I've been doing this since 1985, so this.... Chairman McGrath interjected saying no, I'm not making a disparaging. No, no. That's just, you know, you jump from, you just got the job and you're doing this. Mr. Connell replied, I'm so happy to do it. And hopefully I do a good job. And you're satisfied. I'm going to go over the less technical, just sort of the explanatory things and I'm going to toss it to Caleb for some of the more technical things. Does everybody have the handout? I'll start with the. We have an outline here, project purpose, then the scope, and we'll go over methodology and the findings for the level of service for the various intersections, for the road segments and then some problem areas. And then a couple of quick conclusions. Hopefully get through this in 15 or 20 minutes. Chairman McGrath replied, that would be nice, but I don't have much hope of that.

Mr. Connell then explained, this is a long term project was to study the long term process of traffic through...sorry if I say Hanover. I used to live in the Hanover, New Hampshire area and have to get Hudson into my mind. The long term analysis of the traffic survey, the report, we went out and collected the data for traffic counts throughout the town using various tubes and various other facilities, along with the information we could get from Grid Smart, which is the software program that the town uses for your traffic lights. This was funded by our regular work program funds. So the existing conditions were measured at 23 intersections and along 18 road segments. We did a future analysis using regular growth programs that we have in house for 2030 and 2045. We made other considerations with the Hudson Master Plan with the 2020 update, including information on the logistics center and other foreseeable things in the future. We also included in some of the information that Caleb is going to go over the Hudson Boulevard and some other local studies that are there.

Mr. Connell went on to say, methodology was pretty straightforward. We did automatic traffic counts for those for the road segments. Generally, they're either we have some optical sensors now that we can use, but we also use the tube counters, just a pneumatic tube like like gas stations used to have that go ding. Turning movement counts. We again use the grid smart data and we used some hand counts. We went out and collected information at the various intersections. Like I said, the Grid Smart counts, the existing condition analysis we used the arterial road segments and the level of service. I just want to forewarn the Select Board as a professional, use that information with a grain of salt. It's... it can sometimes be misleading. A bad rating or a good rating can be misleading based on the time of day and some other things. But it's a good piece of information to have so you can look back and find information on it. The level of service and ratings were done using the Synchro Software. It's probably about the best software that's out there. For the future analysis we use Transcad, which is a regional traffic model, and we projected the data from existing 22 data into 2030 and 2045 using the regional growth projection and planned infrastructure projects.

The next page shows the intersection level of delay ratings for various intersections signalized/unsignalized. Average stop delay per vehicle. It doesn't say that on the. It doesn't, it's intersection delay in seconds and a couple of cases in a couple of cases in the study, you'll notice that some of the interaction go from B to C to D, a level of service rating, A being good D and E and F being poor. You can see those change when you think of it, think of it in terms of seconds. So like you could go from a C at 35 seconds to an E at 55 seconds, that 20 second change in terms of average stop delay per vehicle would be almost unnoticeable by the regular driver. So just take, I always want to forewarn people to take it with a grain of salt just because it says it's bad it might be not perceptibly bad. Have a perceptive change. Once you get to the over 50 and over 80 seconds of light, you're you're sitting there with multiple vehicles. You're waiting for the light cycle. I know with myself, I'm starting to count like look at my watch and saying, okay, what's going on? Let's let's move this along.

Mr. Connell then said, page 34. (Caleb) would you like to take this part? Because you're more actively involved. Mr. Cheng replied, so these are the results from the analysis with the level of service for intersections shown here, separate on the right side in two columns, Am Peak and PM Peak. And it compares the level of service on the base year, which is 2022 versus the future scenario in 2030 and 2045. And so the A to F level of service are shown for the respective 23 intersections. The blue colored fonts you

would see in the level of service shows that there indicates that there is an improvement in the level of service compared to the base year, whereas red indicates a decline in the level of service.

There is also some minor notes that I want to point out. You will see some asterisk on it that identify the unsignalized intersections, mainly stop signs, intersections. So they have slightly different methodologies in analyzing the level of service. If you remember in the previous page, there's two tables. The delays are slightly different, but generally they they are A to F as well. And you may notice that, for example, in New Hampshire, number seven, the intersection, number seven New Hampshire 102 and Page Road, the asterisk disappeared in the future scenario is because from the best information we we can get from the Town Engineer, there is likely a signalized improvement in that intersection in the foreseeable foreseeable in the future. So we analyze that intersection as if there will be a signal in the future. So no longer a stop sign. So that's why the asterisk disappeared.

And you also see the pound sign on the intersection as well. That indicates an improvement on that intersection. So in the future scenarios so that pound sign also appears in some other ones. That is not associated with the asterisk because particularly on Lowell Road south of the Sagamore Bridge to the Dracut Road, there is planned improvement on the entire corridor I think include Walmart Boulevard and like Rena Avenue, like where the Logistics Center is planted so that sections will be improved. And so we incorporate those improvements in our analysis.

Chairman McGrath then said, can I ask you a question? To which Mr. Cheng replied, yes. Chairman McGrath then said, You're talking about number 17, Lowell Road and Rena Avenue? Mr. Cheng replied correct. Chairman McGrath then said and you mentioned the Logistics Center, correct? I didn't know that that was Rena Ave. I'm not watching it from the Planning Board, but I would think that.... Selectman Morin then said that's not where they're going but there's going to be a road there. And with the widening of Lowell Road will be those improvements that go down to there. Selectman Guessferd added, the trucks will be coming in Wal-Mart Boulevard. Selectman Dumont added and Mercury Systems across from Rena Ave so there's all that work that's going on there. Chairman McGrath asked Selectman Dumont to say that again. Selectman Dumont repeated himself saying, Mercury Systems there's an exit entrance over there as well. So that intersection is where that work will be taking place. It'll be coming in and out of that direction.

Mr. Cheng added the improvement will extend all the way to the intersection with Dracut Road and Steele Road and also Rivers Road south of that. So there will be, I think in part of the section there will be an additional lane added. Chairman McGrath replied, well, River Road from, because I live on River Road, so I'm very familiar with it. The south end of River Road to the state line that's moderately affected by any traffic from the logistics center moderately. You never can tell if it's going to have more impact than what you think it is. But from Dracut Road down to, I would say maybe Chalifoux Road, that will have an impact. The Logistics Center will have an impact on the traffic in that section of of River Road. And I don't know that you're going to do improvements any further down. Mr. Cheng replied he improvements, we do not determine on improvement. We only incorporate the improvement that was planned according to information given by us, by the Town Engineer. So we didn't invent any changes.... Chairman McGrath interjected saying, no, I'm not I'm not suggesting that. I'm just I'm trying to first of all, I just saw this tonight, so. I would have probably been better prepared to ask you questions or have input into it. But in any event, because I'm very familiar with that end of town, that road in particular, when you bring it up, then my ears perk up and I want to participate.

Mr. Cheng replied, that's understandable. Chairman McGrath replied Okay. Sorry to interrupt you, but. Mr. Cheng replied so I think considering time, we won't go one by one but.... Mr. Connell then interjected saying actually, I do want to point out three or 3 or 4 key things. If you look at Intersection 11, Lowell and Pelham Road, Intersection 15, 19 and 20, you'll notice that in the morning it's relatively good and in the evening it's bad. Or has gotten worse. I'm specifically referring to 19 and 19 and 20. Excuse me. I need my glasses. 18 and 19. What's happening is it's to put it in very succinctly, it's retail closed, retail open. Retail is open in the evening. So you're having the traffic volumes and a couple of places have almost doubled. Other places they haven't quite doubled, but they've come up. And a lot of times with level of service F and congestion, it has to do with where that congestion is. It occurs on like a minor leg and is quite substantial. It can adversely affect the timing of other things in the intersection and give you a bad rating.

Selectman Dumont was recognized and said Since you brought it up 18 in the PM peak hours, I understand why that would be would be worse than the Am. But why in 2030 does it show an improvement? And then it goes back to an F, so it starts at an F, goes to a C and then goes back to an F. What, what determines that? Mr. Connell replied the C would clearly be there's some sort of improvement proposed. But between 2030 and 2045, those 15 years, there's more than likely going to be additional growth in that proximity. So that it just again, starts returning and regressing to a poor level of service. Selectman Dumont replied sure. So obviously, a lot of these with the with the pound symbol that you listed out, a lot of the improvements come from that logistics center that's going to be going in there. So it's from your study, your viewpoint that that level will improve for 2030. Based on those improvements, however, the growth will outweigh that going forward, at least for that intersection. The other ones seem to stay intact, but. Mr. Connell replied I wouldn't say will. I would say may.

Selectman Dumont then said and then the other question I had, just because it seems like based on location, the south end of Hudson seems to improve, whereas Central and Northern Hudson tend to stagnate or get worse. And again, I would assume that's based on the the improvements that's going to be happening in south Hudson and lack of in central and north. Mr. Connell replied I'm going to leave that question to to Caleb, because I'm not sure when the when the model has the the boulevard coming into it and what year that is and that makes.

Mr. Cheng then said, no, so actually for the Hudson Boulevard is not part of the scope of this study. I think what happened was it was taken out of the ten-year plan when this study was scoped. And so because it's outside of the ten-year plan, no longer on the ten-year plan, we didn't include in the scope. And then it was added back afterwards while we were working on it. So even though we consider it, we only, I would say, take information from the master plan update that is ongoing right now, which modeled some improvement that the Hudson Boulevard would do. But Hudson Boulevard was not incorporated in the 2030 and 2045 scenarios on this table in this study currently. So it's partly because of the timing of when the the this the scope of this study was taking place. So Hudson Boulevard wasn't modeled. Selectman Dumont replied so I understand that, I figured that I was hoping that the boulevard would be more of a recommendation rather than figuring in, because you never know if that's going to actually happen. But more or less, what I was pointing out was it seems as though central and northern Hudson with lack of improvements, because it seems like most of them are in the southern area, tend to stagnate or continue to get worse. And I was just curious if that is what your guys' viewpoint, if I was reading that correctly. Both Mr. Connell and Mr. Cheng replied, I think that's correct. I think that's yeah, I mean, we're projecting more traffic. So I mean, you can do, you can do a few things like, like fine tuning the traffic signal timing. But beyond that, like you're just going to have more cars going for intersections and segments. Selectman Dumont replied, okay, thank you.

Selectman Guessferd was recognized and said, thank you, Madam Chair. Yeah. So on that kind of same front I see sprinkled throughout the report or the study that you are, you're essentially especially in one place, in the conclusions that you're saying that the Hudson Boulevard would and you actually use some percentages like 13% or whatever it was that would improve that traffic. So I was just I was just a little bit confused. And I think I think Selectman Dumont was able to get the answer that I was kind of looking for, that it wasn't included. And I did see it wasn't in the scope. But still, our recommendations sprinkled throughout the study that talk about Hudson Boulevard. Mr. Cheng replied yeah. So like we we don't want to, even though it's not part of the scope because it entails more work modeling analysis. We we try to use the best data we have available. And because there is a kind of another study done on modeling done for Hudson Boulevard in the master plan update, so we kind of take it over. So you see that table kind of like in, you know, including that information, even though it's not part of the scope here, you know, we don't want to ignore it. Selectman Guessferd replied, Okay. Yeah. I just want to make sure we're clear. Any clarification I needed. Yeah. All right.

Chairman McGrath then said well, I think, too, I mean, we've got to recognize that there are probably people that are interested in that and wanting to know just what the status of that is. And, you know, so it's it's important to bring it up anyway. Selectman Guessferd replied you can't ignore it. To which Chairman McGrath replied you can't you can't ignore it because it's at 11. it was going to be on the ten-year plan, then somehow got taken off of the ten-year plan. But that doesn't mean that somebody somewhere isn't thinking of that and wanting to, you know, some there's some that are proponents of it, some that are not. And both sides have strong feelings and strong opinions about both of those alternatives, including me. So, Selectman Morin, did you have anything?

Selectman Morin replied just do you have numbers if you take in the amount of households and business? Do you have a percentage of what is drive through traffic and what is in town? Traffic? Mr. Connell replied we do not. There's no real way unless you were tracking license plate numbers. Selectman Morin replied we talked about that in the Planning. That's why I brought it up. Okay. Thank you. Mr. Connell added, no way of tracking. Tracking it. You can make some broad assumptions, but it's. It's still just an assumption.

Chairman McGrath asked Selectman Roy, do you you have anything that you'd like to ask or any comments that you'd like to make? Selectman Roy replied not right now. Thank you.

Mr. Connell continued with the presentation saying, as you can see in our maps and the maps that are in the on the wall or excuse me on the posts and in the report, it's much better in the in the electronic copy of the report where you can zoom into the maps and look around. It gives the Level of service at different time periods for each of the maps. Road Segment - Level of service. There's two types single lane arterials, uninterrupted and single lane. Signalized, excuse me, arterials. And you can see from the different numbers, the the volume to capacity ratio and the vehicles per hour that a road can handle. The single lane arterial would be a two lane road, and that's the number of vehicles that can be handled along that stretch of road. Whereas a signalized intersection may have signalized arterial excuse me, may have multiple lanes and multiple different factors and it can handle a different different volume of cars. I'm going to leave this technical part back to Caleb.

Mr. Cheng explained, I wouldn't go, you know, spend too much time. It's similar to the last table, except it is for segments. So as Ned mentioned, just in the previous page, the Level of service measures slightly different things, whereas in intersections the delay on like being stopped in the intersections here is the volume to capacity ratio that Ned just mentioned. Mr. Connell added you have to just understand it's purely a mathematical function, just one over the other. There's X number of traffic and there's an assumption on the amount of volume that can out there. So it's mathematical volume.

Mr. Cheng went on to say, so theoretically, the more traffic, the higher volume to capacity that's closer to one, you will have more interruptions in the flow, which will slow, slow you down. And then the Level of service would will get worse toward F. So that's the idea. So here we're measuring the the segment. So this will be like in between intersections, like a segments of a road and how they are doing and faring. And similarly, there is improvement. Like again, we mentioned south of Sycamore Bridge all the way to Dracut Road on, you know, intersection with the Lowell Road. And so you can see some of the improvement along there if they appear in blue and red, indicates a decline in Level of service.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said we talked about this at Planning, too, just so it gets out again. Our smart light system, how does that affect the traffic in the future? Mr. Cheng replied so the smart light system would certainly help on the intersection delay. Well, it wouldn't help us much with the road segments because, again, road segments measure how much traffic goes through like, say, on a two lane road, one in each direction. So you it's not going to have a measurable difference theoretically when we're talking about. But on the intersections, a smart system will know how to fine tune or the the traffic signal timing even in real time if set up that way so that it will minimize it will minimize delays on each approach and each turning movement. So turning movement as in you're going straight, you're turning left or right or even u turns like more efficiently so that you can handle more vehicles than, say, more traditional systems like actuated like or see my actuated system can do and certainly much better than time like signals. Chairman McGrath replied thank you. Okay. Anyone else? Selectman Roy, do you have anything that you'd like to ask or? Selectman Roy replied no, not. Not right now. Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Connell explained we have a map, two maps showing the study corridors and the the different Level of services. Next page, the conclusions. Level of service C is your target. And that's where you get the best bang for your buck. This is also what New Hampshire DOT does. And when they're studying an intersection, how they can they get it to Level of service C. It'd be great to get it to A or B, but that would potentially cost millions of dollars more than it would cost to get to C. There are areas in Hudson where and road segments where the Level of service is C or below, and they will be in the future. We need to work on getting them improved, obviously. Or because I know another way to think of this is if you're having cut through traffic from, let's just say, Dracut or other places or even Nashua or Windham coming through town, if it's Level of service, if it's I'll say C or D, I wouldn't let it get to E or F, I would make an improvement if I was in your shoes. You can leave it at a adequate Level of service and basically tell them, you know, encourage them through delays to go someplace else, cut through somebody else's town.

Ferry Street and Chase Street - Level of service F. Through the whole thing. There's very little that can be done other than some mitigating factors we can using the Grid Smart systems for their optimized signals for time of day flow patterns. One of the key things with Grid Smart is they don't it doesn't really handle five leg intersections very well at this point. And you have two of them in town that are two of the more congested intersections. So they're working on it. I know. And hopefully knock wood that'll come about shortly. Certainly coordinating and optimizing signals with the City of Nashua would be helpful, especially with the Ferry Street/Chase Street intersection. Another thing is to upgrade the Grid Smart cameras as to include the critical and the unique geometry of each intersection. Thank you.

Lowell Road south of Central, it's a Level of service F. What was the improvement you were thinking about down here? I forget what it was off the top of my head. Mr. Cheng replied no, I don't think Lowell Road and South Central have improvement there. So it could use improvement. So that's where the Town and the Town Engineer need to prioritize.

Mr. Connell then said mitigation strategies. The first one there is called TDM. transportation demand management or traffic demand management where you encourage people to ride a bike, take the bus drive at a different time and get them to lower your traffic volume and lower your Level of service? Also obviously explore other corridors too.

Mr. Cheng added yeah, those are two examples because I mean, the report we, we explain each of the problem areas in details and you can certainly read in the report with more details there.

Selectman Dumont was recognized and said, yeah. Thank you, Chairman. So you had mentioned Lowell Road, south of Central Street, and you have that in there as an F, but looking it also talks about Lowell Road, south of Pelham and south of Wason. And those seem to improve, not a lot, but a little bit better. So is my understanding, so from Central to Pelham, you're saying that road segment is an F from Pelham to Wason, you're showing that one it looks like as a D, and then from south of Wason down is an E. What do you think that makes that little section right in the middle of town an F? Why? I know you said that it can be 20 seconds it's not a very critical. But is that one of those cases or? Mr. Connell replied it is, but it's also the number of intersections along that section. intersections don't just take them as you know, every time. Every time, every little. It's actually the best example I can provide is I experienced that type of delay. I live with my lovely wife up in northern Vermont and I commute home every Friday afternoon. And every Friday afternoon there's people slowing down at the Hooksett Toll Plaza. Okay. It says right away, keep going 65. Don't slow down. Somebody's always slowing down by the time, it happens every weekend, I can as you're coming up that long hill, you can see the lights coming on. The first person that's a second second is, you know, that's two, three, four. By the time it gets down to me, you know, most way down the hill, almost probably out of Hooksett starting into Manchester, I'm doing 45 miles an hour and thinking, you know, go, go, you people go, why are you slowing down? The toll plaza will take it at full speed. So it's the same sort of thing. Every time you get an interruption in the flow, it starts slowing things down. The computer, the

computer models have been able to mimic that with math and show how it how it will affect based on the traffic volume.

Selectman Dumont replied the reason why I ask because I would have figured it was from intersections, but in that in that part of town, a lot of the intersections that touch the little road are not lit or unlit intersections. As you go further down past Pelham Road, you have more lights along each one. I would have figured that the lit intersections would have caused a larger delay than the ones that weren't. Mr. Connell replied that's not necessarily true. Especially if you had like pre timed lights. There were all a specific time and they didn't care whether there traffic there or not. That supposition could be true. Whereas you have the Grid Smart, the Grid Smart is based on the cameras. The cameras can look and see like if there's nobody on one of the side streets, it's going to skip past that and go to the next. And it can also see that there's traffic starting to stack up on Lowell Road and let that go. Also, the Grid Smart system has, all of these systems have the ability to sort of look among multiple intersections and make sure that we're moving these people through town as efficiently as possible.

Selectman Dumont then said, um, I have a couple other questions. I know if you want to ask anybody else first. Selectman Morin and Guessferd were both okay with Selectman Dumont continuing. Selectman Dumont then said in one of your conclusions, it simply says reconfigure the intersection to improve traffic flow. I'm assuming you're talking over by the Ferry and Chase Street where we have those multiple, you know, five part intersections. What are your recommendations? Did you guys explore anything? Mr. Cheng replied this study, we're not engineering those improvements, so we we only find that there is a problem. And it would take an engineering study to design some improvement out of it. Selectman Dumont replied, that's fair enough. That's what I figured. I just it was down there as a recommendation, so I figured I'd at least ask the question.

Mr. Connell then said I know in other areas that I've worked in, especially with the five leg intersections that you have, like I'm thinking of the one just up the street here and I can't think of the small street is you try to get rid of one of those legs, you have it, you take its junction from being in the intersection and you move it to a, you know, either up the street or down the street. You move it to another location just so you can take that leg out of that area and put it someplace else. Sometimes that's not possible. Selectman Dumont replied I think in that area; I think it'd be it'd be a little difficult to do that.

And then the final question I had. So just that so from your study, the way that you guys view things or whether you're going through and running your models, would you say that the that the improvements that are being made in the south end of Hudson are the only driver that's improving traffic in Hudson at this point? Because it seems like to me outside of that, there's not really any improvement. We're actually we're continuing to get worse. Is there any other driver that's making those improvements on that south end? Mr. Connell replied I think there's the and this is just my short term person here guessing is in those areas there's a better ability and a bigger amount of better ability and bigger amounts of right of way to do various improvements and improvements that we know about right now. Whereas more in the village area, there's just simply less ability like, like the I forget what they were calling it, the something or other triangle. Yeah. There's just yeah, we can think up great options but every one of them comes back to a property taking and you know, so it's just, you know, yeah, it's feasible. But you bulldoze everything that's putting the traffic out there and, you know, why would you do that sort of a thing? Selectman Dumont thanked Mr. Connell for his reply.

Chairman McGrath recognized Selectman Guessferd who said yeah in that same vein. I was I know a lot of towns, I see them all over the place, improvements that are being taken place in different towns and I'm not sure it applies here. It could even apply here. But what are your thoughts about about the concept of rotaries? You know, you see more and more of them out there. I'm not sure we have the real estate to do that in any of those intersections, but I always want to think about what could be done and and do they significantly improve or do they improve traffic flow in most of the places? Or is it is it location specific?

Mr. Connell replied to an extent its location specific and it comes down to speed or the approach speed of vehicles. If people are approaching a roundabout at 65, not a good idea, you know, 45, even at 45, I would

say you're it's still you know, you're going to want some fair warning and some something to set people up so they know what's coming. I know Pelham's had good, good, good opportunity with them, but I would say most of their streets on my initial recollection are about 35 miles an hour. You got to get sort of in that sort of sweet spot where people can go from 35, you know, entering the intersection area to 20 through the intersection to back to 35 because you don't want to have them. I know in the case of Hanover, New Hampshire, I was working on two roundabouts for them a decade or so ago. The they have smoothed out traffic congestion. Yes, they've done some other things. They've beautified and slowed traffic into town. The problem is, is that they've the volume of yahoos coming through those intersections and accelerating rapidly was never accounted for. So you have people with a fancy exhaust, you know, causing not congestion, but noise in the area. So you've got to balance both things. But roundabouts in the village area, yeah, they'd probably be, you know, they'd, they'd would work to reduce congestion. However, you need the real estate to actually implement it. Okay.

Chairman McGrath asked Selectman Roy, would you have any questions or comments? Selectman Roy replied no, Bob stole my question about rotaries, so I'm good. Chairman McGrath replied, okay. Thank you. She then addressed Mr. Cheng and Mr. Connell saying I have a question for you. This seems to be based on the logistic center being built. Is that correct? Mr. Cheng replied yes. The assumption in the regional traffic model that we use to project the future traffic volumes that is reflected in the level of service incorporates that assumption. Chairman McGrath then said and so what happens if that doesn't end up getting built? Because we've already had Amazon back out Target, I heard, I don't know that it's true, but I heard that they're putting a pause on things because of the mess that they created for themselves. And if they back out altogether, then what does that do to your traffic study and your traffic t analysis? Mr. Cheng replied so strictly speaking on the analysis is we're projecting. So I can't say what will happen, you know, in the future. But we predict like based on the let me step back. in the analysis just on the analysis, then it will take off certain amount of vehicles, trips going through both the segments and intersections. So there will be some improvement in the level of service in that regard, but it might not be very significant improvement. So you might see a great increase in some places, but otherwise it might be minimal so that the level of service grades remains what it is. Chairman McGrath replied, well, if it doesn't get if it doesn't get built, then the Level of service that we have now should remain pretty much the same because we're not having the added traffic based on that development. I'm just trying to get, you know, trying to get an idea of what actually, you know, you based your analysis on. And I think the main part of it was because of the logistic center. And if one one big developer, Amazon backed out already Target has put a pause on things, if I'm correct about that. And I think that I probably am. But if they've put a pause on things, there's no certainty that they're actually going to go through with the with the construction.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said studies in the past show without the logistics center, that was still going to get a lot of traffic. It's going to continue to get worse with it or without it, it's going to continue. Mr. Connell added, population will be increasing at some nominal amount somewhere around 1%, a little higher, a little lower depending on the year. And the economy, you know, 1% is still something and it's still be, you know, 1% here. If they don't put the logistic center here, might be on the other side of the river, might be down in Massachusetts, might be other places. But it's still going to cause some residual growth in the area.

Chairman McGrath replied, I you know, believe me, I understand that we have a traffic problem. I mean, that's evident without the logistic center. I mean, we're you know, State of New Hampshire dumped a lot of traffic into Hudson down on the Sagamore Bridge. And that's the truth of it. So, I mean, we have that traffic now. The traffic that we have now is, you know, problematic and probably enraging for a lot of people. And yeah, let me just kind of I'm on my soapbox here and. We need to do something about that. And we thought that that was, you know, part of it was, you know, the the what they call the Hudson Boulevard or the Circumferential Highway that was supposed to be on the ten-year plan, you know, and it's is that ideal? Certainly not and certainly not something that I ever favored, but it's something that we could at least consider. And but, you know, times are changing. And I mean, we have a problem now with Target. If Target ends up or the logistics center gets built, it's going to be exacerbated, certainly. But umm. but if they're not built, if if that plan just disappears and that doesn't happen, then our numbers were a little skewed. That's all That's all I'm trying to point out.

Mr. Connell replied, I would, I would hope and Jay may hit me in the back of the head very shortly. So just I'm ready for it. Chairman McGrath replied, I'll let you know if he gets up. Mr. Connell then said, I would hope that between now and 2030, we would be back for additional traffic survey work and be able to say, you know, a new projection, new things. Also, given the economy and given funding, we're not really going to be building those improvements until sort of the last second before those people build any sort of a building. Additionally, in the very near future, and I forget if it's later this year or next year, there is in the ten-year plan a feasibility study to study the circumferential or boulevard. And certainly I'm very certain they will be contacting us to get a copy of this and our data for that study. Chairman McGrath asked when you say they, you mean the state? Mr. Connell replied well, I'm assuming they're going to hire a consultant to do this for them and they being probably a group of consultants to do it.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said to go along with my first question. And again, we discussed this in Planning, but want to get it out here. This study did not include all the development that's going on in Nashua, all the development that's going on in Londonderry and all the traffic heading to Route 93. And if you take Hudson as a whole, we don't have the draw like Nashua and Londonderry have. We have the people going through Hudson to get to those draws, and that has to be taken into consideration, too, because that's a huge volume of traffic here that they haven't even covered.

Chairman McGrath replied, so and so to your point, some of those developments over across the river should have been determined to be or deemed to be regional impact developments because we know exactly where it's going to be ending up. And we should have had input into those developments. But they weren't deemed regional impacts. So, you know, shame on, I'm going to aim at the mayor's office. And, you know, it's it's something that, you know, we're in this area together. When we were talking originally about the logistics center, when Amazon was the developer, we wanted to name that a regional impact. Town of Hudson for all of the other communities that might be impacted. We were willing to name it a regional impact because the impact that it might have on those communities, including our own. And we don't get the same common courtesy from our next door neighbor. And I'm telling you, that is infuriating.

Mr. Connell replied, I recommend, and if you have a concern, write a letter to the mayor. Write a letter, frankly, to us (NHMA) saying, hey, you know, what can what can we do? Or saying, hey, we have concerns. This is a development of regional impact. You know, Mr. Mayor, Mr. Planning Commission Chair, please reconsider or consider our request to have some input. Chairman McGrath replied a little late now. Mr. Connell replied It is. And they may turn it you know, as I've seen in other papers, you might, you might get something and you might not. But it doesn't hurt to just ask and try.

Seeing no further questions from the Board, Chairman McGrath thanked Mr. Cheng and Mr. Connell for their presentation. Mr. Connell replied if you have any questions, email them and we'll happily address them.

## 8. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

## A. Hudson Highway Safety Grant Acceptance

Chairman McGrath recognized Cpt. McElhinney and Chief Dionne. Captain McElhinney began by explaining Chief Dionne and I are here this evening to get approval to accept Hudson Highway Safety Grants. Highway Safety Project number 24-092. It's a 100% matching grant. It's yearly occurring. This year in the amount of \$9,000. We've been a recipient of this grant many times in the past, and its purpose is to support the Patrol Division and selective enforcement of a number of areas, specifically \$2,400 in the amount of Speed. DWI Enforcement in the amount of \$1,600. \$1,600 in Distracted Driving.

Join the Click for \$850. Drive Sober or Get Pulled Over in the amount of \$1,700 and you text, you pay, you drive in the amount of \$850 again, for a total of \$9,000.

Selectman Roy was recognized and asked so what is our match, exactly? You said two different things. You said it was a 100% match. But then you provide something that says we only have to match by \$2,250. Captain McElhinney replied, uh, no, I don't believe I said that. I'm sorry if I wasn't clear. No, it's a it's a 100% matching. And then I broke down the \$9,000 into denominations for the different areas of enforcement. \$2,400, I think was the first number I mentioned, which is for speed enforcement. So it's 100% matching grant. Chairman McGrath asked, and the total of the grant is \$9,000? To which Captain McElhinney replied correct.

Selectman Dumont then said I think Selectman Roy is clarifying is that is 80% will be provided by federal funds and we are matching 20%. Correct? Captain McElhinney replied no. Did I say something to that effect? Selectman Dumont replied you got a federal budget number and then you have a minimum match required. And it looks like that minimum match is roughly about 20%. Captain McElhinney replied, I'm sorry. I'm sorry. Where are you seeing? Selectman Dumont replied on Exhibit A that you have. Typically, it's a match where it's. Are we matching 100% of the federal funds? Yeah. At the bottom it says project costs 80% federal, 20% applicant share minimum matches. That's required, it says. At this point the Executive Assistant gave Chief Dionne and Captain McElhinney replied that would appear to be correct. That's the first time it's not a 100% match. Chief Dionne added, in the past, it's been 100% match. We've had grants for the radars that we had to match in value, but not the enforcement grants.

Selectman Dumont then said, I mean I mean, quite frankly, obviously, if you're looking at it, it would appear to me that you're getting more for your bang. You're only you're only providing 20%. They're going to cover the other 80%. So it would appear to be better in my opinion, but. Captain McElhinney then said, I wonder if that is for. I can't speak for sure. I wonder if that because this this Exhibit A does include speed equipment, like the chief said in the past, where there is a match, whereas this traffic enforcement, particularly the 100%, we can certainly get an actual answer on that to clear that up for you. Apologies on the confusion on that.

Selectman Dumont then addressed Selectman Roy on the phone saying, just to clarify, Selectman Roy, I didn't mean to butt in there, but I was I was wondering, the same thing, is that were you on the same line or was that your line of thinking? Selectman Roy replied, yeah. Yeah. We have one thing that says we only have to match \$2,250, and then you're saying it's 100% match. So it just got confusing.

Captain McElhinney replied, surely. And I apologize for that. We'll certainly look into that. Again, like I said, my understanding is that the I would suspect the 80%/20% is for the speed equipment in some of those other speed mitigation devices, whereas the direct enforcement is the 100% match. But we can certainly get an answer from you guys tomorrow.

No further questions from the Board. Selectman Guessferd asked, does that mean we're tabling this til the next meeting? Selectman Dumont asked the Chief and Captain, do you miss any opportunity by tabling it to the next meeting? Chief Dionne replied, the next meeting is August 8th, I believe. We do not miss any opportunity because the we're currently involved until September. Correct? To which Captain McElhinney replied correct. The Chief then said we wouldn't miss an opportunity.

<u>Selectman Morin made a motion to defer this grant acceptance until the next Board of Selectmen meeting.</u> <u>This was seconded by Selectman Guessferd. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>

## B. Electric Aggregation Plan Update

Chairman McGrath recognized Hudson Electric Aggregation Committee member, Craig Putnam. Mr. Putnam began by saying, Good evening to the Select Board. So in your packet is a revised version of the electric aggregation plan. There's actually two copies. One is the marked up red line of the original plan that was approved at the town meeting. And then the other one is a clean version that incorporates all of those edits. The edits are all editorial in nature. They do not change the the intent or the processes or the goals of the plan. All of the the changes are grammar, punctuation, formatting, things of that nature. There were also one a couple of places where changed the tense of some of the text too, because the original plan addressed some things that were going to happen in the future, specifically the warrant article to be voted on at the town meeting that's now happened. And so I wanted up to date the update, the plan to reflect that that had happened. There was also one table in one of the attachments that had the then membership of the CPCNH Board of Directors, and that's been updated to reflect the current membership. So it's necessary to have the Board of Selectmen approve the revised plan and have that reflected in the meeting minutes. And once that's done, then I will submit the plan to the Public Utilities Commission. So that's that's where we are. Do you have any questions?

Chairman McGrath asked anybody have any questions for Mr. Putnam? Selectman Dumont was recognized and said yeah, just a couple of general guestions that we're getting towards the end of it. I thought it'd be good to clarify. So the coalition obviously made up of a bunch of the founding towns as reading through the plan it looks like they've outgrown or they've they grew a little bit more than they expected. And the board of directors is let me rephrase this. So each town has a representative to that board of directors for that coalition, correct? Mr. Putnam replied that's changed because of the bylaws of the Community Power Coalition, initially each town would would have a representative on the Board of Directors. So that was that was a role that I played once a certain number of member communities was is achieved at the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors. Then the makeup of the board changes. Selectman Dumont asked, which happened in April? Mr. Putnam replied yes and that's why the number went down dramatically. Selectman Dumont replied I think that threshold was 21 communities. Mr. Putnam replied I believe so. Selectman Dumont responded I just want to make sure I was following that correctly. So do we currently have any representation? I mean, obviously we're part of the coalition or will be part of the coalition. Do we still have representation on that board? Will we have representation? Mr. Putnam replied so I did not put my hand up to to run for a board position. So so no, Hudson has no one on the Board of Directors. We're still members. There's a membership meeting, as a matter of fact, this coming Thursday and I will be attending and voting on things that come before the general membership. So those meetings are now held quarterly.

Selectman Dumont then said and a different question I had was on the source of power. A couple of things that I read is that Eversource would is going to is going to be providing electric. And then a couple of other ones that I was reading is that the individual groups within the coalition would have the opportunity to, to find different sources of power and put that into their portfolio. Am I understanding that correctly, or is Eversource going to be the main controller of the power?

Mr. Putnam replied, so for any for any community that stands up, a community power agency, whether it's with CPCNH or not, they would partner with a power procurement provider, let me call it that. We're looking at three CPCNH being one and then two broker model companies as well. And so that partnership is to be determined for Hudson. We haven't made a decision yet. That's what's the subject of the workshop in October. Selectman Dumont replied, correct. So I guess when I was when I was reading through, I was wondering what is the source of where they drawing their energy from. One of the examples that the state gave was, you know, it was a it was a dam in a local community. They could use that as a power source to add to their portfolio. I was just curious where. Mr. Putnam replied, I misunderstood your question. Well, all the power producers say small producers, like a small hydro, like Nashua has a couple of small hydro plants. Those aside your. large generators are all part of what's called ISO New England. And so the the they they provide power into the grid in general and companies who wish to provide power to customers such as Eversource as a default provider or the other utilities as default providers, they would be purchasing

power from those power plants. So so they'd be buying contracts for for future power. Selectman Dumont asked for the distribution of that? Mr. Putnam replied correct. And then the and then the utility still is on the hook to do the distribution and transmission. So Eversource is role does not change in that respect at all. Selectman Dumont replied okay. That's what I was wondering.

Selectman Dumont went on to say then the other part that I have that that they had spoken about was a lot of the communities that are going for this this purpose are searching out renewable different forms of renewable energy. Is that a long term goal or are we is that not something that's even thought of right now? Mr. Putnam replied it is certainly a goal for CPCNH to enable communities to have the option of higher amounts of renewables and to support development of renewable projects down the road. They're not there at the moment in terms of being able to do that, but that is certainly the intention. If you look at Nashua, for example, they have gone live with CPCNH this spring. They have four different rates for for let's say the the rate class, the residential and small business rate class. And so the Granite Basic is is at the lowest price and that is in terms of renewable, that's 23.4%, which is the state mandated RPS requirement right now. That changes every year a little bit goes up, but 23.4 is it at the moment. And then there's the Granite Plus rate class, which is 33% clean, 50, 50% clean, 100 and 100%. And so the so you have increasing rates across those four rate classes. So where the renewables come from, that's coming from the ISO New England. And so they may be it could be Canadian Hydro, it could be wind offshore wind, it could be solar, it could be biomass. There's a variety of sources for the renewables. And what you're doing is you're paying extra to basically support those those renewable producers.

Selectman Dumont replied that makes sense. That's why I was curious. And then with all that being said, I thought you had mentioned maybe at the last meeting or maybe it was just it was a lot of information. Do you have a rough estimated cost of what what the charge would be to to a customer or a rough area of what you think the decrease from, let's say, the default provider to CPCNH would be? Mr. Putnam replied, well, I can't project into the future, but the current rate starting in, well, sorry. Let me let me say I do know what the future will look like starting August 1st for the next six months, that that rate table is published. Is that what you have there? And so I'm going by memory here. I believe 12.582 is the Eversource rate and CPCNH will be at 10.9 cents for the default. Chairman McGrath said it'll be about a two cent reduction. Selectman Dumont replied it looks like about a \$2, right? Am I seeing that correct? Selectman Guessferd replied those are cents per kilowatt hour. Selectman Dumont apologized. Selectman Guessferd added about \$0.02 or so per, per.

Mr. Putnam added so it's not as it's not as large a reduction as we saw in the spring. But, but Eversource has come down dramatically since since their February rate which was 20 and change \$0.20 and change down to \$0.12 and change. So about an eight cent decrease, \$0.08 per kilowatt hour. Chairman McGrath then said aren't they planning to decrease the rates again? Mr. Putnam replied if you look at that table, give me one second here to bring up my copy of it. Chairman McGrath replied you can just I can't I mean, first of all, I don't have a copy of it, so. But I think I think that they're supposed to be going down on their rates again. Mr. Putnam replied, well, they have each of the utilities has a variety of rate classes. So if you're looking at just your standard R rate class for residential small business, that is not a monthly rate class. So it's fixed for the six months. So for you as a homeowner or somebody who's a small business there with Eversource here in Hudson, their rate changes in February and then it's constant until August 1st and then it changes August 1st and it's constant until the next February. There are on the commercial and industrial rate classes, monthly rate classes, and they change per month and they might go down further on the monthly one. There's some examples there in the table, but then they're going to go up again. If you look at the projected rates on those particular rate classes, they're climbing back up into the 20s by February again.

Selectman Guessferd replied right. Yeah, we just had a meeting last night, so that's what I. That's why I have this.

Chairman McGrath asked, Selectman Roy, do you have any questions? Comments? To which Selectman Roy replied I don't. I'm all set right now. Thank you.

Chairman McGrath then said, okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Putnam. At this point the Executive Assistant addressed the Chairman saying, I believe we need a motion to approve. <u>Selectman Guessferd</u> <u>made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to accept the Hudson Electric Aggregation Plan as</u> <u>amended. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0</u>. Mr. Putnam thanked the Board and said I'll have the revised version on its way to the PUC tomorrow. The reason we were in a hurry to do this is that the PUC will take 60 days to act on it. They always take the 60 days allotted, to the last second. And we should have the approval from the PUC before the October 3rd workshop. Chairman McGrath replied, okay, thank you.

## C. Resignation of Firefighter/AEMT

Chairman McGrath introduced this item and asked is Deputy Tice here? The Executive Assistant spoke up saying, this was previously on the agenda and it had been brought forward for a motion to accept this firefighter's resignation. And you folks pulled it into nonpublic. So Steve had let the chief know that he didn't need to come for this tonight. Chairman McGrath replied okay, so we have a resignation of Firefighter/AEMT Benjamin Savage. Anyone willing to make the motion? <u>Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to accept the letter of resignation from Firefighter/AEMT Benjamin Savage effective August 10, 2023 with the Board's thanks and appreciation. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.</u>

## D. Request to Adjust Part-time Videographer Hourly Compensation

Chairman McGrath recognized Director of Community Media, Jim McIntosh. Mr. McIntosh began by saying, Well, it's good to see you all tonight. It's been almost two years since we adjusted the initial rate. This is just going to be a base base rate salary. Our currently the pay is \$15.00 per hour for videographers. We changed their title from camera operators because they do much more than just run cameras. They have to learn a lot about the the skills and stuff. The skill sets have grown in order to keep up with competition in the marketplace for these kind of skills. I just wanted to see if it would be possible to, if you would agree to a like a it's from a change from \$15.00 an hour to \$15.50 an hour as just the base salary because it doesn't usually get adjusted. The videographers are only with us an average of a year. Sometimes we get lucky and we get them for two years. But that's a rare occasion. What I was proposing was only just over 3% from \$15.00 to \$15.50. And with with the way things are going right now, I kind of think we need it because we're in competition, unfortunately, with McDonald's and Market Basket for students, the high school has helped us out in the past with their students in the media. Unfortunately, this past year I think they had two students in their Studio 19 program. I don't know what they have in classes. It's a new media teacher, somebody we haven't had. So we've been kind of reaching out to other people to see if we can get more students that are more technically capable and this will help us draw them in. We don't offer a whole lot of hours for this, unfortunately. I mean, we four hours, we average four hours pay per meeting and then we give them the opportunity to go and record special events like high school games or special events around town. I'm sure everybody's seen our people somewhere at one time or another. Something like this would help us keep us in competition, probably help us keep us staffed. So anybody got any questions.

Selectman Morin was recognized and asked what are we competing against? Do you have have an amount we're competing against? Mr. McIntosh replied depends on the size of the town's what they can offer. Some towns like Merrimack, for example, their full timers, our videographers are all part time. With the kind of money that they get from Comcast, their full timers, cover the government meetings and they do a few other things. By and large, we cover more government meetings than anybody else I've seen with what we have, I think we do a pretty good job. The competition we have is just that they're not a lot of students who are interested in doing this kind of thing, and most of them would rather go to Market basket where they can hang out with their friends and stuff, you know? And that's if I were a kid, I'd probably be

the same way. You know, I was unfortunately, I was the the IT geek when I was in high school. The guy who rolled around the the old fashioned camera with the reels and the the projector and stuff, you know, So I kind of segued into this. But they don't do that anymore. You know, everybody has computers, everybody has projectors, you know? So we kind of have to develop the skills ourselves. It's not a super high rate right now. I do know there are several towns that offer a base pay of basically for a government meeting because they only do a few. They offer \$65 and they're ready to go up in the same position I am \$65 for up to four hours for a government meeting. And then after that it's per quarterly hour, which is kind of what we do too.

Selectman Guessferd said it's \$16 an hour. Maybe a little bit. A little bit more. So what you're asking, it seems reasonable. Chairman McGrath added I mean, especially. I mean, it's not a full time job. Mr. McIntosh replied no it's not. It's 4 to 10 hours. Actually, they average ten hours a week. Yeah. And that's usually during the summer when we have a lot of things that we can throw at them. Ten hours' maximum. I think most of them average about 4 to 6 hours. Chairman McGrath asked do you think that, I mean, do you think that \$15.50 is, is the amount that you really need to entice people or do you I mean, do you think if you went up to \$16.00 an hour that it might entice more to be interested? Mr. McIntosh replied I think it really would. I don't know where we're at in that respect. I've kind of been watching our revolving fund as opposed because like a lot of towns, the few towns that don't have, they ask for volunteer camera people to go in there and record like Amherst, New Hampshire. They have they bought equipment, but they're always every single posting that they have is, Oh, we're looking for town volunteers. If you want to keep watching these meetings, you should volunteer. They take all their money from Comcast and they just use it for whatever. And they don't get a whole lot in Amherst. But other towns like Bedford, I think Merrimack, they they get 100% of the Comcast fees. At HCTV we split it with the town. We get 80% of the Comcast fees and the town gets 20%. It's kind of to offset the work that we we have done like through finance and stuff for our payroll and other things and to help with the insurance for us.

Chairman McGrath then said so back to the question, do you think \$16.00 would be enough to entice? Mr. McIntosh replied I think so, yeah. Better quality. Chairman McGrath then said I mean, you know, it's not megabucks. I know every I know every dollar and every dime really matter. But in this case, if you're having trouble finding people to take the jobs, maybe just bumping the pay up from \$15.00 to \$16.00 would be enough because they're they're kids. They're not you know, they're not out in the the real world yet where they're going to be, you know, maybe making more money. So, you know, if you think that that would be acceptable.

Selectman Guessferd was recognized and said I just want to kind of put it in terms of what I heard. Two years ago was the last time there was any sort of increase, right? Mr. McIntosh replied two years ago, it was. A major increase. We were so far behind. I don't know if any of you remember we were paying \$11.00 an hour and we were getting hammered by other people. Kids would come, they would leave in 2 or 3 months. Selectman Guessferd then said so what that amounts to, just so people know, is 3% is about 3% per year because it's a dollar more, which would be about 6%. So it would be 3% basically, we're catching up, you know, in terms of the last two years cuz we didn't do an increase last year. So it's not like they're getting a 6% bump for for one year. It's it's the two year and they're now up to speed and competitive, a little bit more competitive. So I'm fully in support of it.

Chairman McGrath replied, okay, anybody else have any comments? Selectman Dumont? Selectman Dumont said I just had a question because I'm not familiar with it. Does the School do any internships with HCTV or anything to try to get to show kids that are there that other option I guess? Mr. McIntosh replied not currently. We have been working on it. We do have a girl who is going to be interning with us this starting this fall. So that's the beginning of our program. But that was a topic I was going to come to Selectmen within a couple of months before she comes in, because the problem we're running into is at the state level, they're saying, well, we think interns should be paid. And, you know, she only can only work. I believe it's 20 hours a week for an internship that she has to work. And it's only for a short time. So that would be a different kind of topic. But currently not really. They have a newer media teacher who's still getting his feet wet on a lot of these things and we try to reach out and help when we can, but we are going fully to the wall with a lot of things. I mean, there's so much stuff to cover. And honestly, we love covering

everything. I mean, we we sit there in the office and we complain about some of the things we miss, like the water thing at Alvirne High School today, Mike was all over me saying, well, why didn't we find out about this? I don't know. What am I going to do reach out and call the Fire Chief and say, hey, come on?

Selectman Dumont replied you know, well, that's one of the reasons why I brought up, because I think that obviously I think the increase in money will definitely help. But I also think it just kind of goes along with some of the other trades that we see to just kind of showing an interest at an earlier age. If you can offer that, you know, through a school program or even just outreach or some if possible, like I'm not that familiar with it. That's why I wanted to ask the question. But I just think it's always good to give kids some different opportunities. And you never know. Like you said, the kid changed his mindset of going from Market Basket to work for HCTV and finds out he really likes that and, you know, chooses that career. I don't know. But I just figured I would ask.

Mr. McIntosh replied, plus with the increase to I mean, I'm looking forward to doing a lot of things making adjustments with the internship program is basically we're going to be piloting that this fall. But other things have to do with just getting kids interested in general in doing this kind of thing, because we've had a few people who are outstanding who just moved on to other things in school. But if we can offer a kind of a competitive salary to what's out there locally, those college students who were within the area, if they go to like a community college or something within 15 or 20 minutes' drive of here, they might be willing to come back and stay with us. And the talent that they'll develop by then will be incredible because some of the kids that have graduated from us and gone on to college at Keene and Emerson and stuff, the things they're doing are phenomenal. And if they if Keene or Emerson had been closer to us, they would more than been more than happy to stay with us because they could have borrowed our equipment to work at school. And at the same time they were giving us stuff for the town to use.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said and I just got to say two things, actually, for what we get out of HCTV is huge. Especially we don't have a newspaper anymore and all the different things that they actually cover in the programs that they cover. What I want to caution the the taxpayers out there is and I say this with no miss content or anything, but we have two contracts coming up and we are going to be paying a \$16.00 stipend when our firefighters start at \$18.00, we're going to have to make some increases. And people need to understand that that. All of our employees all the way across the board. We need to start doing something because what we get out of them and what we pay them is a sham. It really is. I mean, we lost two guys to Nashua because and I'm going to say it again. Our people do twice the amount man for man that they do over there and they get paid quite a bit more. So I just want to caution, you know, I fully agree with Jim because I know what they do and what they provide for this town and they are well worth it. But we've got to do this across the board and people need to understand that's coming.

Chairman McGrath replied I agree. Sadly, I think that given the state of the the country is in right now, that's going to be a hard hill to climb because, you know, maybe not everyone is hurting, but a majority are. And until there's a change, you know, someplace that's you know, it's I can see, you know, I can see the taxpayers questioning every every increase because they're hurting. Sure. Know. So we need to be cognizant of that. And and, you know, it's just one of those things that we're kind of between a rock and a hard place. We have good employees. I think we have great employees. And, you know, and they should be compensated and they have the same. So they have the same issues that we face. So if things are high for us, our bills are high, our buying groceries, all of the things that you have to have to live on. They have the same things. So and they need to be compensated. It's just it's it's really a difficult spot for everybody. It's a difficult spot for the taxpayer. And it's a difficult, difficult spot for the employees to be in and for us to be in to try and balance it all. It's you know, it's just unfortunate.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said if I'm correct, you said \$16.00, you wanted to bump it from \$15.50 to \$16.00? Mr. McIntosh agreed. <u>Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman</u> <u>Guessferd to adjust the hourly rate for the HCTV part-time videographer position from \$15.00 per hour to</u> <u>\$16.00 per hour</u>. Selectman Roy was recognized and said So I actually will support the the increase to \$16 and to sort of echo what what Selectman Morin said is, I don't think we we do a good job of staying competitive with pay rates. And it really is something we should probably discuss because we will continue to either not be able to hire people or lose people because simply because we don't pay them enough. Um, they as Selectman McGrath pointed out, they also have families and bills and all of those things that they need, just like all of us. So I support this, but I also think that there's a big a a bigger thing here where we need to address how we incrementally, maybe every year do modest increases so that we can we can maintain our competitiveness. That's all I have. Thank you. <u>A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0</u>.

## E. Town Code Chapter 98 - Updating Limits for Purchase, Contracts & Bids

Chairman McGrath introduced the item and asked Finance Director Lisa Labrie, who was in the audience, are you going to talk about that or? I think you were just looking for a decision that was brought up at a prior meeting. Selectman Morin added, yeah, we've already done the public hearing. It's up to a vote unless anybody has discussion. Chairman McGrath asked the Board, Okay. Anyone wishing to make a motion? I'll read the motion into the record. Motion to amend Town Code Chapters 98-5. Selectmen action required for purchase and contracts over \$25,000. Chapters 98-6 Rules and Regulations for purchases on contracts under \$25,000 and Chapter 98-7 Bidding Procedures by increasing the limits stated in the Chapter from \$10,000 to \$20,000 and from \$25,000 to \$50,000. And by adding section Chapter 98-7B (3) All departments shall complete the "Request for Proposals/Bid Checklist" which will be submitted and filed with the bid award package. That's a mouthful. Okay. So Mr. Selectman Dumont made this motion and said I would like to just say one thing before that I am in favor of this, and I will make the motion. However, I want to make it clear to anybody who's watching or who views this, the reason why is not to erase the bidding procedure. It's not it's not too It's not to make it any easier or sorry, it's not to eliminate the bidding process. My hopes in doing this, it would make things a little bit easier for some contractors to come in and bring some formal bids without having the the process of coming to the Board and taking a couple extra weeks to get that decision. I know some of that red tape and some of those time restraints can push people away. I'm hoping that this will allow a few more people to come in. So I fully expect that the staff continue to do, to seek bids, multiple and hope that this will make things a little bit easier on them and bring in some more people and hopefully get us some better deals. Chairman McGrath replied well, and to entice the people to actually bid on things, because that's the problem today. Selectman Dumont replied, exactly. Yeah. I think that there's some there's some restraints that people are worried about or that they shy away from. Hopefully this little bit makes it that much easier for them to try and put a bid in. Chairman McGrath asked, is there a second to the motion? Selectman Morin seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

## F. Town of Hudson Firefighters Union Successor Contract

Chairman McGrath introduced this item and asked Selectman Morin do you have anything? To which Selectman Morin replied just there is a tentative date at this point. It's only tentative for August 7th just to set the rules and then we'll start negotiations after that. But we got to wait for Steve to get back before we can set that date for him. Chairman McGrath replied okay. The motion is to appoint Selectman Morin to the negotiating team for the Town of Hudson Firefighters IAFF Local #3154 Union successor contract. Selectman Guessferd made this motion. Selectman Dumont seconded the motion. Chairman McGrath asked if there was any discussion. Selectman Dumont was recognized and said Yes, just a question again. So because I'm not familiar with this process, how does it typically work? Obviously you'll be the liaison to negotiation and I'll just flat out is there any possibility for me to be involved in any way? I would just be very curious to how it how it works. To shadow you or to see how it goes. Selectman Morin asked, would you like to do the next one? To which Selectman Guessferd laughed and Selectman Dumont replied, quite frankly, I saw your name on both of them and I want to at least offer some help if there's anything that I could do. But like I said. I've never done that before, so I want to know if it was possible, if I could be involved and at least see how the process. Selectman Morin jokingly replied I'll make the motion for the next one. Selectman Dumont replied at least Just wanted to throw it out there. But yeah, I'd be more.... Chairman McGrath interjected saying I think that yes, you could shadow Selectman Morin

and sit in. You're not going to participate in them, but. I mean if he's there. But if you want to try the next one. Selectman Dumont replied I'd be more than happy to, but yeah, I was, I was that's why I was going to start was at least on that one. I know. Especially with the fire you know. I know that's your bread and butter. I figured, well this would be a good, good opportunity to shadow if that was something that was.... Selectman Morin added the fire would be a good one because that's one of the bigger, bigger groups. Yeah. So but there's always the second one.

Chairman McGrath added, but you can you can also shadow, you can, you can attend the when the negotiations are going on, you can see how it works. You know, I sat in on a couple of them and my thought process going into it was, don't say anything because, you know, you don't want to say something that the the group that you're negotiating with is going to either yee-haw, you know, we made some inroads here or or being angry, you know, what you say so that I would caution you if you're not on the negotiating team, but you can certainly sit in and I would advise you to do that. I think that that would be a good you know, and it doesn't normally take long. It takes about an hour maybe. Selectman Dumont replied, I'm not too worried about that. I thought it was I mean, it's obviously something very important. So I just wanted to at least, like I said, offer If there's anything I could do, let me know. At the very least, I'd like to shadow and just kind of watch the process. Chairman McGrath replied I think that I think that that's a really good idea. Selectman Morin added, and it's usually depending on how we set the rules, usually like three meetings or something. That's how it goes. Chairman McGrath then said so Selectman Morin is going to be for the firefighters. Selectman Dumont said motion made and seconded. *A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0*.

## G. Town of Hudson Public Works Union Successor Contract

Chairman McGrath introduced this agenda item and said <u>motion to appoint Selectman</u> <u>Morin to the negotiating team for the Town of Hudson Public Works Union successor contract</u>. Selectman Morin spoke up saying, I haven't heard anything on any dates yet for this one. Chairman McGrath asked, anyone willing to make that motion? <u>Selectman Guessferd made the motion and Selectman Dumont</u> <u>seconded it</u>. Selectman Dumont spoke up saying again, I'm always available, so just let me k now. I'll make time. Chairman McGrath replied that might be another good one to sit in on. To which Selectman Dumont replied I would like to. Yeah, at the very least. Selectman Morin added, probably the same thing. Three meetings. They're not very long. Unless. Unless we get bogged down on something. But usually it goes pretty well. Selectman Dumont replied, like I said if there's anything I can do just let me know. <u>A roll</u> <u>call vote was taken. Carried 5-0</u>.

## 9. Board Liaison Reports/Other Remarks by Selectmen

Selectman Roy: I do not have anything at this time. Thank you.

<u>Selectman Dumont</u>: Just a couple of things. The past weekend, there was a Beatles cover band that played at Benson's Park. What I saw was very good. I'm hoping to see some more of that go on.

The next cleanup day at Benson Park is 8/19, August 19th.

And then we have an upcoming ZBA meeting this week on the 26th. And for both of those, I just want to throw out there that if anybody wants to get involved, always looking for volunteers. So thank you.

<u>Selectman Guessferd</u>: Let's see a couple of things. Sustainability, as we saw tonight, we approved that that plan. We had a meeting last night. The Sustainability Committee is going to be represented at National

Night Out next week. So I want to put a plug in for that no matter what. National Night Out, I went last time for the first time, last year and it's it's grown every year. It's a very big community event. The Hudson Police and Fire are there. It's it's it's a very good it's at the library. It's at the Rogers Library. Chairman McGrath interjected asking but isn't that meant for first responders? To which Selectman Guessferd replied not per se. It's really more of a I mean, the library typically organizes it, along with the Police and the Fire, they put it all together. It's a community, basically a community event. Probably started, what, six, seven years ago, something like that. And the Sustainability Committee is going to be a part of that. But overall, people come out for it. It's a great time. They're going to have food trucks. They're going to there's going to be an epic water, water fight with the the police and the children. So you bring your kids out and they'll be able to I think it's water balloons or something like that. A lot of fun. They're a lot of booths from various organizations around town, the library and everybody who goes has a great time. It's a couple a couple hours in the evening on on August 1st. So hope to see you out there. I'm going to try to make it myself.

And as far as the Sustainability activities we are, they are going and looking at talking to a couple of the towns, I think Nashua and Keene who have been stood up and want to talk to them about their experiences, and that information will become available for us when we do the workshop with them in October. So that's that's, that's what they're they're working on for that.

As far as Rec is concerned, continuing to have the the summer programs going well, it's still, like I said, 250 or so children involved and they're doing field trips and everything I'm hearing is that they're having a great time.

And then Planning Board, we have three cases tomorrow night. There will be we'll be looking at and and then we're after that, we'll be continuing to to work the master plan chapters. Now that the transportation study is done, we'll be able to incorporate that into the transportation chapter of the master plan. So that will be coming up in a couple of meetings. And that's all I got.

Chairman McGrath said, can I ask you a question? Actually, it's a request. Selectman Guessferd replied, okay. Chairman McGrath went on to say, so when you report on the Planning Board, can you at least tell us what plans that they're looking at? You know, like Target? Or, you know, whatever, whatever. I'm not talking about probably...Selectman Guessferd replied like for tomorrow. I know exactly what you're talking about. Chairman McGrath replied I'm talking about developments that are going to have an impact on the town. Selectman Dumont added substantial. Chairman McGrath replied yeah, and not know but you know, like housing developments, you know, some of those are relatively small. And I don't think that the I don't think that that's the impact that it had would have on a community. I think that it's the others, you know, like like I said, like Target a gas station, you know, whatever, whatever would have an impact. And I just I personally, I would like to know because I don't I've got to tell you and I've got to you know, whoever is watching this, I don't spend my time after I leave here watching other meetings because it's like watching paint dry. Unless you're, unless you're there to really, you know, participate and to add something to the meeting, you know, it's to me, it's like watching paint dry. I just, I just assume not and I don't. So I think but I think it would be good to add that to your, your list of things to talk about only because I think a lot of people are really interested in that. Selectman Guessferd replied, okay, so in that vein, I can actually tell you one of the things that we're looking at tomorrow night, it's our second or third basically meeting on it. Two of the other ones that we're doing tomorrow night is sightline change and a and a lot divided into two different ones, Selectman Dumont added subdivision. Selectman Guessferd continued, but the one that we've been we've had a couple of meetings on and tomorrow night they're coming back is 84 Lumber is looking to put a store on the intersection near the intersection of Sullivan and 111. It's kind of set back across the street from the Eagle Motel on as you're looking at it on the right hand side, the western side of the of the intersection. So they're working through the the plans on that. That's probably the biggest one we have right now. Chairman McGrath asked, so is it going to be a lumber mill or? Selectman Guessferd replied, it's a retail store. Chairman McGrath replied like Home Depot. Selectman Guessferd replied, more for lumber and contractors. I mean, I think a lot of contractors use them. They sell lumber and bulk. And I mean, you can go in as a resident and and just buy lumber. But a lot of contractors do they've got they've got locations all over New England and they're they're proposing to do another one here in Hudson at that location.

Selectman Dumont then said, and if I may, something similar that's in this area, Belletete's in Nashua. very similar size to that scope. Selectman Dumont replied from what I see when I was on the (Planning) Board. Selectman Guessferd added like Friend Lumber too? Selectman Dumont replied, yeah. Which is now Hudson Lumber, I think Hudson Lumber actually looks a little bit bigger than what 84 is, is projecting. But you're going to give you if you want to drive by and look at them. Chairman McGrath replied yeah, well, you know, again, it's to me it's like watching paint dry. No, but, you know, it's I think it's something that people are interested in. I haven't I haven't heard that from anyone. I'm just surmising that. I just think that, you know, people are interested in what's what's going to be developed and and what impact it might have on them. You know, it may not have any impact. They may not be the least bit interested. But at least if we can spend a couple of minutes doing that. Selectman Guessferd replied, sure, I'll make that part of my report. And I think that's it for me.

<u>Chairman McGrath</u>: And I'm next. And I don't have a whole lot I've got just a couple of things for the Police Department there. Their development of that, the addition is going very well. They've posted it on on I think they posted it on Facebook. They've posted it on their own website. It's you know, it's readily you can see it. HCTV is out there a lot, taking a lot of video. And it's remarkable the progress that they're making. So that's that's one thing.

And the other thing for the Police Department that I wanted to mention is that they again, they put it on I believe they put it on their website and I think maybe the town's website as well. And it's a discussion or information relative to fentanyl poisoning and the drug drug impact on the community. So I think that that's, you know, for parents especially that have, you know, young kids that are still in high school and maybe more, you know, some of the things that they're they're being enticed with is anyway, they've put some put some really good information that I think is valuable, valuable to the parents, also valuable to the kids if they're interested in looking at it. And. And certainly the community, I think, as a whole.

School Board Representative Gary Gasdia spoke up saying, Madam Chair, May I? To which the Chairman replied of course you can. Mr. Gasdia went on to say, for for the parents and grandparents listening, it's not just high school. It starts very, very, very young, really. And I don't know if it's fentanyl. I'm not as up on the drug scene as others, but I know there are things that look like candy and they're showing up in the middle schools and even in elementary schools. So it's never too early to talk to your kids about it. Chairman McGrath replied right. And thank you. The fentanyl, they're mixing fentanyl in with other things and they're making it look like candy. And now I don't know who I was telling. I've talked about it with a few people today. The other thing that they're mixing with and these are for more adults and more hardcore drug addicted people, but they're adding to the not only fentanyl, they're adding this I think it's called trang and it's a horse sedative. And the horse sedative has an impact on first of all, it it does very destructive things to the body, physically destructive and and which causes the amputations in some regards. You know, it's just it's awful. And the other thing that it does is that it if they find them in an overdose situation where they're trying to use Narcan as as something that would pull them back from the brink, if it's been mixed with this trang, the Narcan won't work. So it's I mean, all of this stuff is being flooded into this country. And it's it's terrible. It's it's having an impact throughout the country. And but I was very happy to see that that the Hudson Police Department put it put it on their their web page. And I think it's probably elsewhere, too, probably the town's website website. So that's all of my remarks. And Mr. Gasdia, do you have anything that you'd like to?

Mr. Gasdia replied, I think Selectman Morin goes next. Chairman McGrath replied, oh, I'm sorry.

<u>Selectman Morin</u>: (jokingly) she felt bad all the negotiations I got so she skipped me. He then said, first of all I want to say Selectman Roy, it's good to have you here with us again tonight. Selectman Roy replied, thank you. Selectman Morin then said, I filled in at the Planning meeting for Selectman Guessferd. We had one case that really was was pretty minor, but we focused also on the traffic study. That was most of the meeting the other night that got covered there.

We had the Historical Society and the Library here last meeting, and the Historical Society is interested into moving forward to see what they can do with that building. So we will be setting up meetings shortly and I'll

report on those as as my regular committee meetings when we have them. So that will be moving forward. That's all I have tonight.

#### 10. Remarks by School Board

Chairman McGrath recognize School Board Member Gary Gasdia who said Just to echo Selectman Morin, Selectman Roy, it's nice to have you sort of back. Can't wait to see you in person.

So a couple of things with the school. It is the summer, but the School Board and the Superintendent had a full day workshop last Monday was open to the public, but we were there by ourselves. But we talked all about the priorities for the upcoming year. Some of the things that are going to be coming up. We have a couple of contracts coming up for the Para's and the Administrators this year. We did some long term planning, looking at enrollment studies and projections and things like that. So it was really, really productive day, which was great. And of course, part of it is we start talking about the budget and there was an email that went out from the Superintendent today to all the families.

There was a Facebook post and I just want to bring attention to it because I think, you know, we're trying to change up how we work together with the with the Budget Committee. And, you know, for me, it's we're trying something different. And I know I think it was the June 7th meeting and I know you're there. The Budget Committee voted and agreed to a proposal from our Chairman Whiting, on October 14th. We're going to meet the School Board and the Budget Committee. We're both going to see the presentation from the District at the same time. We'll ask questions. They'll ask questions. No decisions will be made, but it allows everyone to get it early. We'll get to sort of see what the Budget Committee is thinking even before we start doing things, and then everything else will be normal. It'll go back to the School Board, we'll do our normal thing and we'll deliver it to the Budget Committee and they'll do their normal thing. But it's about a month earlier than than normal. And so it's something we're trying and I'm just excited. I think it's great to to think outside the box. And I'm happy that the Budget Committee agreed to it. And, you know, one final thing that was in his email today is for the towns, folks, it's not the School Board's budget or the Budget Committee's budget. It's the Town's budget. If you have ideas of what should be in or should be out, send us an email and we can start talking about it now. So I'm excited for for that change this year. So that's all I have.

## 11. Nonpublic Session

Motion by Selectman Morin at 8:50 p.m., seconded by Selectman Guessferd to go into non-public session under RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her, unless the employee affected (1) has a right to a meeting and (2) requests that the meeting be open, in which case the request shall be granted. (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

Nonpublic Session was entered at 8:50 p.m. thus ending the televised portion of the meeting. Any votes taken upon entering open session will be listed on the Board's next agenda. The public was asked to leave the room.

The Board entered open session at 10:22 p.m.

Motions made after nonpublic session:

1. Selectman Guessferd made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to hire Victoria Hope Chapman and Edison Tan as Part-time Videographers and be classified as Regular Special Shift Employee, at the current videographer rate. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

- 2. Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to seal the July 25, 2023 minutes of nonpublic session. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.
- 3. Selectman Morin made a motion to adjourn at 10:24p.m. this was seconded by Selectman Guessferd. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

## 12. ADJOURNMENT

# Motion to adjourn at 10:24 p.m.by Selectman Morin seconded by Selectman Guessferd. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

Recorded by HCTV and transcribed by Jill Laffin, Executive Assistant.

Marilyn McGrath, Chairman

Dave Morin, Vice Chairman

Bob Guessferd, Selectman

Kara Roy, Selectman

Dillon Dumont, Selectman